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  Relating to domestic violence; to simple assault and to provide a penalty. 
  
 

Minutes:                                                  1 

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the hearing on HB 1393. 
 
Rep. Heinert, District 32:  Introduced the bill.  It is a bill that deals with domestic violence   
It will basically remove the domestic violence section in current law from under the simple 
assault section 12.1-17-01 and create a new section titled Domestic violence under 12.1-17-
01.2.  It will also change the charge of domestic violence from a class B misdemeanor to 
Class A misdemeanor for the first offense and increase the 2nd offense with an injury to a 
felony.   
 
Rep. Hanson:  How can this help law enforcement and other entities with reporting on the 
specific offense? 
 
Rep. Heinert:  Part of the need for the change is the follow up for reports and data. Right 
now those reports will be under simple assault.  This will give us a true account of what is out 
there as a domestic violence offense by separating this. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: In addition to creating a new section in code specifically for 
domestic violence and the penalties go up for the same type of offense versus simple 
assault?  
 
Rep. Heinert:  That is correct and an explanation for this will come from the testifiers. 
 
Janelle Moos, Executive Director of CAWS North Dakota: In support of HB 1393.  
(Attachment #1) Went over testimony and handouts.  Stopped 16:00 
There are things in this bill that we can take domestic violence more seriously and that people 
can get access to treatment and prevent those future homicides.  Explained case of a man 
that repeatedly abused a women and eventually murdered her.  
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Chairman K. Koppelman: In that case were the penalties ramped up with the repeated 
assaults.  Could they not in current law?  
 
Janelle Moos:  No they weren’t and they possibly could have been.  Judges have a lot of 
discretion in what charges are brought forward.  It is important for judges to look at each 
incident and not apply a blanket sentence. 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  We need to look and compare the bill to all of 12.1-17.  If you go down 
to section 2 it is aggravated assault too.   We need to look at the bill as a whole.  What this 
does besides create a section called domestic violence is simply a class A misdemeanor for 
simple assault on a family member.  If you slap your friends husband it would be a class B 
misdemeanor but if you slap your husband it would be a Class A misdemeanor. 
 
Janelle Moos:  That is correct.  If I were to slap you it is a class B misdemeanor; but if you 
were to slap me.  So the change that this bill allows for is looking at those relationships that 
are defined under chapter 14 a family or household member.  
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  Why not just make a really simple bill by doing the small change with  
 a simple assault?  Why not just have that change? 
 
Janelle Moos:  The other reason is being able to get a sense of how many domestic violence 
cases are out there.  You will actually be arrested for domestic violence under this bill. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: You talked about treatment; does the bill do anything there? 
 
Janelle Moos:  No it doesn’t.   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: This section in current law says mandated treatment of domestic 
violence offenders.   
 
Rep. Paur:  On 12.1-17-02. Subsection 2, if the victim is under 12 years of age or suffers 
permanent loss or impairment, then they are guilty of a class B felony.  I was wondering why 
is that basically included in this. 
 
Janelle Moos:  Our domestic violence and rape centers primarily provide services for adult 
victims of domestic violence.  We do have services across the state for children.  This bill 
and the data that I reported to you was for victims age 18 and over.  There are other statutes 
in place regarding the children. 
 
Rep. Paur:  But it says if they suffers permanent loss or impairment, that could apply to your 
18 year olds or older. 
 
Janelle Moos:  We didn’t talk about that particular case, if you look at page 2 line 21 it talks 
about bodily injury, substantial and serious bodily injury.  We have not made any changes to 
that.  
 
Rep. Satrom:  I notice the changes in statute, it changes from $500 to $3000.  Is there any 
magic in those numbers? 
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Janelle Moos:  That is actually what is in current statute under Chapter 12. 1-32 under    
penalties and sentencing.  Class B currently is a maximum of 30 days or $500 fine.    
Class A is a year in jail or a $3000 fine.  That hasn’t changed.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  I understand the need for reporting and harmonizing the code 
as I mentioned with the domestic violence reference where there is no such offense currently.  
The question comes up what a terrible thing it is when there is an assault involving family.  
You mentioned a former spouse?  Is that domestic violence if you are not currently part of 
the same household?   
 
Janelle Moos:  Yes, it is a household member, spouse, family member, former spouse, 
parent, child, residing together or have kids in common.  It is an expansive definition.     
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Most of us think of a household as being under the same roof.   
If someone is divorced and 20 years later would it still be considered a domestic violence 
offense.  
 
Janelle Moos: It would meet the definition of household or family member.  In that particular 
case law enforcement, if they are responding to a report of a physical assault, once they 
arrive on scene they would have to determine that if they would have enough to arrest that 
person for simple assault and decide if it meets their criteria for domestic violence.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Let’s say in a simple assault case should the crime be greater 
based upon whom it is committed against?  Why is the fact I was assaulted any less 
egregious than if a family member is assaulted?   How do you deal with that side of the issue?  
 
Janelle Moos:  I am not saying one physical assault is any more serious and if this committee 
would look to increasing the penalty for all simple assaults to an   A misdemeanor then okay.  
Our programs serve the domestic violence victims.   I do stand for making sure someone has 
the right to be safe in their own home. 
 
Aaron Birst, North Dakota Association of Counties:  We support this bill.  We do not take 
a position on whether the penalty should be increased.   We leave that for the legislators. 
31:32 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:   Any opposition or neutral testimony?  Seeing none. 
 
Hearing closed.  
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Relating to domestic violence; to simple assault and to provide a penalty.  
 

Minutes:                                                  1 

 
Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1393.  What this bill does is create a 
separate Section in code on domestic violence.  The concern is that there is no domestic 
violence charge because they are charged under simple assault at this time.  The other thing 
the bill does is it elevates the level of an identical offense for domestic violence if it happens 
in a domestic violence incident.  I personally don’t have an objection to creating the domestic 
violence section but I have some problem with penalizing someone to a greater degree 
because of who they offend against. (Attachment #1) Proposed amendment. 

 
Rep. Vetter:  I move the amendment 19.0939.01001.  
 
Rep. Becker:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Any discussion on the motion? 
 
Rep. Hanson:  I will resist these amendments.  We heard testimony on how domestic 
violence is an egregious crime since it involves two people within an intimate relationship. 

     It certainly is a problem in North Dakota so I support the original bill.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:   Any further discussion?  Seeing none.   
 
Voice vote taken on amendment.  Motion carries.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  We have the amended HB 1393 before us.  What are your 
wishes? 
 
Rep. Rick Becker:  In the aspect of out of state charges in consideration of what would be 
a repeat offense.  Do we see that with other offenses in statute?   
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  I think we do.  We see offenses described very similar but have 
different nuances to them.  The reason I think it may make some sense to insert this section 
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into code is because we have things like mandated treatment of domestic violence offenders 
in statute and general reference to domestic violence in our culture and yet we don’t have 
that section in code.  
 
Rep. Vetter: If we add this section of law can someone be double charged? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  No. That would be double jeopardy.   
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  The definition of family or household member was read.  The definition 
is quite expansive.  I like the fact that we are keeping the penalty the same as assaulting any 
other person.  I think the bill as far as creating the definition of domestic violence is good.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  I agree with that expansive definition it should be covered.  I 
support the addition of that section. 
 
Rep. Paur:  In the assault section which this mimicks there is a provision for under 12 years 
of age for them being guilty of a class B felony.   Should that be included in this?  We don’t 
need this then? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  I think it is already covered under that statute.  We do need this 
as far as the other references of domestic violence.  
 
Rep. Hanson:  I recall that creating a separate section enables better reporting.  It gives us 
a more accurate account of this particular crime.  When we have better data we can follow 
up better and proactively try to prevent the crime.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I move a Do Pass as amended on HB 1393. 
 
Rep. Jones:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  Is there any discussion?  Seeing none. 
 
Roll call vote taken:  Yes    10   No   4 Absent  0.   Motion carried for a do pass as amended 
on HB 1393.  
 
Rep. Hanson:  Will carry the bill. 
 
Hearing closed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 12.1-17-01.2 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to domestic violence; to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 
12-60-16.4, section 12.1-17-01, subsection 6 of section 12.1-17-07.1, sections 

12.1-17-13 and 12.1-32-07, and subsection 3 of section 12.1-38-01 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to simple assault; and to provide a penalty. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment 

 
Chair Larson opens the hearing on HB 1393. Senator Osland was absent. 
 
Pat Heinert, District 32 Representative, testifies in favor 
 
Representative Heinert: The main reason behind this bill originally was to create a subtitling 
outside simple assault for domestic violence. We change it over to 12.1-17-01.2 under the 
handing of “Domestic Violence”. The language is almost the same as above, but a couple 
changes were made in the House. The emphasis is to create a tracking system for domestic 
violence within the law through what law enforcement reports to the attorney general’s office 
so we have a more precise number of how many domestics are happening in this state. In 
the change, both the first offense and any subsequent offense in the new language stays as 
a class b misdemeanor. In the past it was a class b misdemeanor for the first offense and a 
class a misdemeanor for the second offense. On the House side, we did ask to have that 
increased to a class a misdemeanor for the first offense and a class c felony for the second 
and subsequent offenses. They felt that was not appropriate, so it was reduced to class b 
misdemeanors across the board, which is not appropriate in my opinion. My request is that 
we go back to the original language. We cannot allow the second offense on a domestic to 
be the same charge; it has to be an upgraded classification. 
  
Senator Bakke: 30 days is the penalty for a class b misdemeanor? Would you be alright if 
we went to class a misdemeanor? 
 
Representative Heinert: There is a significant difference between class b and class a in the 
statute. It goes from 30 days and $1,500 to 360 days and $5,000. 
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Senator Luick: The people that commit these crimes, do you think they understand and 
anticipate the differences in the penalties? Is strengthening that penalty going to stop or get 
people to be more cautious when committing these crimes? 
 
Representative Heinert: Serving in law enforcement for 39 years, I see every angle. Some 
people don’t care of the charges, but a lot of people do care and understand the significant 
differences in repeat offending. Typically, if they have an attorney, they’ll be informed that as 
well on their first offense. 
 
Senator Myrdal: There are those cases where it’s a one-time offense. I think a class b 
misdemeanor is appropriate in those cases. 
 
Representative Heinert: Yes, and no. Many people who commit domestic violence if 
properly handled will probably not offend again. I think most of them recognize that they’ve 
committed a crime. However, I believe that it’s the type of incident that if we don’t have some 
form of punishment with, there is going to be a step up increase in domestics. 
 
Chair Larson: What is the penalty for a simple assault that’s not domestic? 
 
Representative Heinert: I believe it’s a class b misdemeanor for first offense. 
 
Senator Bakke: Is there any mandatory counseling? In Grand Forks we have treatment for 
men who have committed domestic violence. There are classes they have to attend such as 
anger management. Is there anything like that that is required after the first offense or would 
you be in opposition to adding something like that? 
 
Representative Heinert: I will defer that to the next speakers to address that. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: I see in the bill that bodily injury is a class b misdemeanor for the 
first offense and a class b misdemeanor for a second offense. Then I also see that for serious 
or substantial bodily injury it’s also a class b misdemeanor. It doesn’t talk about a second 
offense in those situations. Obviously there’s a difference between regular or serious and 
substantial. We almost need to address those distinctions as well. 
 
Representative Heinert: I agree, but I can tell you under a serious bodily injury, we would 
charge with the felony assault charge versus the domestic violence. Based on the domestic 
violence increase is what the states attorneys would typically look at doing. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: We’d be creating a conflict if we did this. 
 
Representative Heinert: Yes, it appears to be a conflict. 
 
Senator Bakke: Did this conflict occur when the House did their amendments? 
 
Representative Heinert: We originally had asked for a class a misdemeanor for the first 
offense and a class c felony for the second offense. The House amended it to both b 
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misdemeanors. As to the third, I believe that’s still the same language as was in the original 
under simple assault. 
 
(11:25) Janelle Moos, Executive Director of the CAWS North Dakota, testifies in favor 
(see attachment #1) 
 
Moos: I’ve talked with Aaron Birst with the States Attorneys Association. He’s not here today, 
but they did support the bill on the House side and were instrumental in helping us think 
through how we draft this bill. There was no opposition on the House side, so we were 
concerned about the change to the two class b misdemeanors. 
 
Senator Luick: What was the reasoning on the House side to reduce the penalties? 
 
Moos: There was no justification presented. During the committee hearing, I testified in 
support as well as the states attorney association. There were some questions about why 
we wanted to do this, and I think we were able to provide proper rationale. There was no 
committee discussion at that time during the hearing. During committee work, the Chairman 
introduced an amendment to the bill which amended it to what’s in front of you. Chairman 
Koppelman would be the person to ask. 
 
Senator Myrdal: On page 2 line 26 and 27 where it says a class misdemeanor for the first 
offense and then a class misdemeanor for the second offense. Would you be in support if we 
did a class misdemeanor for the first then upped it to class a misdemeanor for the second? 
 
Moos: That is what’s currently in state law. In the overstruck language starting on page 2 line 
4, that’s current law. When they amended the bill, they changed the first offense to a class 
b, but they didn’t change the language on line 27. My preference would be going back to the 
original bill. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I’m not sure of the intent because they actually lessened it severely which 
was not the intent of the bill. 
 
Chair Larson: The one benefit keeping it as a simple assault for a domestic assault but had 
it counted as domestic assault would be the gathering of statistics. That’s the one thing that’s 
not being done. 
 
Moos: Correct. 
 
Chair Larson: This bill back in its original language wouldn’t be to change the penalty but 
would change it so all the statistics could be better put together for the AG’s office reporting. 
 
Moos: The original intent created a separate domestic violence section and also enhanced 
the penalty. The House changed the penalty. Our intent would be to go back to the original 
bill draft. 
 
Senator Bakke: I noticed on page 3 lines 22 through 27, they address treatment. Does this 
take place in jail or once they’re out? 
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Moos: Most of the domestic violence offender treatment programs are located in local 
communities and often run by a public or private provider. Some are offered in the prison 
system, but you’re only going to catch the most dangerous folks that have landed in the 
prison system. Currently we have treatment programs in every judicial district. That’s new 
within the last 18 months. Last session the House Appropriations included money in the 
Department of Health budget that increased funding to this type of treatment. Prior to that, 
we only had three programs in the state: Grand Forks, Bismarck and Fargo. With the 
additional money, our intent was to make sure offenders can get to treatments if the judge 
so sentences them. Now we have one in Williston, Dickenson, Minot, Bismarck, Devils Lake, 
Valley City, Whapeton, Fargo, etc. Orders to treatment are pretty low in a lot of judicial district. 
Grand Forks is the exception. They’ve had a program for a good number of years, and it’s 
very successful. Judges order to that program more often than they don’t. The number of 
911 calls, the number of protection orders and the number of rearrests decrease significantly. 
By getting someone in this 24-26 week program, we show tremendous results, and it’s a 
good way to prevent that revolving door. 
 
Senator Myrdal: If it’s a one incident first-time offense, isn’t it severe to go to a class a 
misdemeanor? Are you finding in your experience that victims wait until multiple incidences 
before they are willing to press charges? 
 
Moos: I know we don’t want to make a legislative change intended just for one particular 
individual. What we know in domestic violence cases, it might be the first time they’ve been 
arrested for a physical assault, but what we know in most cases, it’s been ongoing years of 
violence and abuse emotionally, physically, sexually or others. I find it very unlikely that it’s 
just a one-time incident. Most domestic violence victims stay in relationships for a large 
number of years. They know that if they know where the offender is, they’re likely safer. Most 
victims know when they can and cannot leave a relationship. The most lethal time for a victim 
is when they chose to leave the relationship. That’s when the stalking happens and often 
when victims are killed. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: While tracking domestic and simple assault charges is nice to have, 
the real heart of this bill is the class a misdemeanor because it provides greater opportunity 
to get these folks into treatment and/or jail. 
 
Moos: Yes. After 40 years, we can demonstrate that we need to take these crimes seriously. 
Over half of our domestic violence homicides in 40 years are domestic violence related. We 
know ways to prevent this, and this is one way we can do it. 
 
(29:35) Chas Neff, private citizen, testifies in favor 
 
Neff: I’m not here on behalf of the ND States Attorneys Association, but I can say from May 
of 2014 to January of 2017 I was the assistant state’s attorney for McKenzie County, and 
from January 2017 to January 2019, I was the states attorney for McKenzie County, and I 
have prosecuted many domestic violence cases. I’m strongly in support of the reporting 
aspect, but I’m not in favor of the amendments that came through with the penalties. This bill 
has taken simple assault, assault and ag assault and combined it under domestic violence; 
it’s a, b and c under the subsection. If you look at the penalty that got amended down, you 
now have what is essentially an assault and an ag assault which would be an a misdemeanor 
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and a c felony now a b misdemeanor under domestic violence. This creates chaos for a 
state’s attorney because the defense attorney would argue to the judge that they should have 
taken the lesser of the penalties and put it under domestic violence as opposed to ag assault 
or assault. The penalties at minimum should go back to where the current law is. I agree with 
CAWS that by the time you get an arrest for a domestic violence, there’s been violence 
before; it just hasn’t been reported. Is the first offense going to change someone? There are 
a lot of times that people take it seriously after the first offense because of the enhanced 
offenses down the road, and sometimes the don’t. However, I would rather protect that victim 
and also rehabilitate that offender, even if it’s just a few. Let’s save those lives and make 
sure those two people continue to be good citizens. There is a mandatory domestic violence 
offender treatment throughout the state all the way from a class b misdemeanor domestic 
violence or a class c felony ag assault domestic violence. 
 
Senator Bakke: The statute says unless the domestic violence offender treatment is not 
reasonably available to the defendant. We’re hearing that they all are reasonably available. 
Do we need to remove that language? 
 
Neff: I think that would be an appropriate amendment. In McKenzie County, we always 
struggled with getting services out there, but people can go up to Williston and get it. We’ve 
always included that, and I think it is a very good program to put people through to make sure 
they understand how to better their lives. I’m in full support of the reporting, but the penalties 
need to change in my opinion. 
 
Senator Bakke: For the offenses, it says a class a misdemeanor for the first offense, a class 
c felony for a second offense, then it says if it’s a serious offense such as substantial bodily 
injury, it’s a class b misdemeanor. That should go to a class c felony, correct? 
 
Neff: That was the original bill as introduced by Representative Heinert, is both of those 
would be the c felony. You’d have the analogous for the ag assault but an increased penalty 
for the assault. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: I would be willing to come up with amendments. This would create 
a conflict between ag assault and domestic ag assault as is. 
 
Senator Bakke: I’d like to see us remove line 24-27 on page 3. 
 
Chair Larson: That also talks about anger management class whereas above that, it doesn’t 
even address that. 
 
Senator Bakke: It’s saying that may not order them to the anger management. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: The problem is it’s a whole different subject matter. We’d have to 
have the supreme and district court and the prosecution folks address that before we make 
that change. Right now the court has discretion. I don’t think we should make any change. 
 
Chair Larson closes the hearing on HB 1393. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 12.1-17-01.2 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to domestic violence; to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 
12-60-16.4, section 12.1-17-01, subsection 6 of section 12.1-17-07.1, sections 

12.1-17-13 and 12.1-32-07, and subsection 3 of section 12.1-38-01 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to simple assault; and to provide a penalty. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment 

 
Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1393. Senator Osland and Senator Myrdal were 
absent. 
 
(see attachment #1) 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: This was the one that Janelle from CAWS really pleaded with us to 
return it to the House version where they wanted an increase penalty for domestic violence. 
This changed is from class b to class a for the first offense and then class b to a class c 
felony for the second and subsequent offense. An aggravated assault is a c felony, so it 
wouldn’t make any sense to have aggravated assault to be a c felony then have aggravated 
assault in domestic cases be a class b misdemeanor. In our current code, an aggravated 
assault against someone under 12 is a class b felony, so it wouldn’t make sense to have 
aggravated assault against someone under 12 be a class b, but then in a home not be a 
class b. Those are the amendments. 
 
Senator Luick: There was talk about removing lines on page 3. 
 
Senator Bakke: In talking with Janelle, she said that anger management isn’t intense 
enough. That’s why they had “may not” to order those. They want them to take the offender 
treatment. She wanted that left alone. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer moves to adopt the amendment 19.0939.02001. 
Senator Luick: Seconds. 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
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Vice Chairman Dwyer: Motions for a Do Pass as Amended. 
Senator Bakke: Seconds. 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer will carry the bill. 
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Members Present:  Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman; Rep. Vetter, Rep. Simons, Senator 
Dwyer, Senator Myrdal, Senator Bakke. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones opened the conference committee on HB 1393.  Looking at the differences 
in the bills does the Senate want to go first and explain their amendments from your 
perspective? 
 
Senator Dwyer:  The bill as you recall was introduced for a couple reasons; one was to 
separate domestic violence from normal aggravated violence or assault.  Part of that was for 
reporting purposes so they could keep track of those kinds of offenses. The other was as the 
bill was introduced it provided that a offense for a domestic violence or bodily injury to family 
or a household member would be a class a misdemeanor and a class c felony for a second 
offense.  Part of the testimony was that these offenders are often repeat offenders and their 
intimate relationships in a household.  On page 2 substantial bodily injury; which is described 
in the code, and serious bodily injury which is described in the code; offenses of those natures 
would be a class c felony.  In the century code if you commit an aggravated assault against 
a child under the age of 12 it is a class b felony.  We made that change on page 3, lines 5 & 
6 so that the code would be consistent with current code regarding aggravated assault; so 
that was just to be consistent.  We went back to the way the bill was introduced because we 
felt these kinds of offenses deserved these higher penalties because they are so often repeat 
offenses. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  I think Senator Dwyer covered the basics of this.  On page 2, subsection 
1 & 2 described the bodily injury part of it.  In testimony we all know what if it is a one-time 
thing.  If it is we are dealing with that.  But that is a serious issue as well because you have 
an intimate relationship.  It is different than when you are walking on the street and you see 
somebody with a hood on and they are crossing the street and following you; that is different 
than home with one of your beloved that all your guards are down. Historically we know; 
mostly women, though it can be men too, these have occurred over a long period of time 
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before they are being reported the first time.  That is proven fact.  It is very often not reported, 
until it comes to the point you have this bodily injury issue. That is what lead me in my 
conviction to returning it to the original bill.  I understand the concern of the House and I think 
we all know what we are dealing with here and it needs a strong bill. 
 
Senator Bakke: We were looking at some consistency throughout our century code.  For 
something like this I think I prefer it the way it originally came out.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  The request for consistency I think is what we need strive for here. The 
House version had some errors.  I don’t think we can go all the way back to the House version 
because we actually reduced the penalty level into places.  On the House version on the 
second offense we made that a class b misdemeanor and the current statute for assault; the 
current penalty would be a class a misdemeanor.  
 
Senator Dwyer:  The way the House passed it out is a .01001 version? 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Looking at .2001 on page 3 here where it has a class b misdemeanor struck 
and then you have a c felony, does that b misdemeanor mean that is what the House had 
and the c felony is what you guys changed it to? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones: That is correct. The version that came out of the House had some errors 
in the fact that we actually went backwards with some of the penalties.  I don’t know if I am 
comfortable increasing domestic violence.   I don’t think it should be less offense to assault 
a stranger than it is to assault someone you have a relationship with. I think we should make 
it the same as assaulting a stranger. I think we should make this section separate so we can 
track it separately for reporting purposes.  I am open to discussion on that.  My next thought 
is in the new section for domestic violence we a sub 2 where we break out and it is defining 
elsewhere.  Senator Dwyer referenced the fact we have separate definitions created for 
bodily injury; substantial bodily injury and serious bodily injury.  Read the definitions. 
Substantial bodily injury and serious bodily injury have the same penalties so I think the 
committee should consider breaking those out into separate offenses.  My thought would be 
we would take; if the Senate were willing to recede from their amendments so we could 
further amend my thought would be we would make this a class b misdemeanor for the first 
offense under subdivision a; which would be just bodily injury.  We can look at the Senate 
version, if that is the simplest we would go to page 2, line 26; we would return that to a class 
b misdemeanor; and then on line 27 for a second or subsequent offense we would make that 
a class a misdemeanor.  Those would be consistent with the law for assault currently. If we 
go to page 3; we would go to line 3 where it says a class c felony for an offense under 
subdivision b or c; where those subdivisions are the same for both substantial or serious 
bodily injury.  I would recommend that we would say a class b misdemeanor for an offense 
under subdivision b; which would be substantial bodily injury or a class c felony for a offense 
under the subdivision c; so we would have that step up for a serious bodily injury.  If the 
committee was open to it; that is not c 5 differentiated in the assault section, so we could also 
seek to amend the assault section so it is consistent for non-domestic violence offenses, if 
the committee wanted to go that far. The other thing I would like to clarify is the Senate added 
about a class b felony on lines 5 & 6 for an offense under subdivision b or c.  if the victim is 
under the age of 12 years; I think that is currently a class c felony?  Beau can you check? 
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I think we should leave it as the same type of offense as in a non-domestic violence situation.  
Those are my thoughts as far as amending. 
 
Senator Dwyer:  If I am walking down the street and someone beats me up; I may never see 
them again.  You cannot compare assault to a stranger to assault to a domestic violence 
where they are in the home where they are going to come back and live together again. To 
me that is just a whole different situation. The person assaulted is most often unable to 
defend themselves. The reporting is just an extra benefit.  The purpose of this bill is to provide 
protection for family members that are being assaulted. This is usually the whole hoist of 
reasons why people don’t report this the first time it occurs.  Maybe it is the children, fear or 
finances.  We need to provide some protection for these victims and some safety.   
 
Rep. Vetter:  I disagree with the previous speaker and so does our committee when we 
worked through this bill.  In our committee we did not see a difference on the assault.  The 
crime should be the same.  We are talking about consistency; let’s keep it consistent.   
If all these statistics are what they say are then we can get better reporting, if this goes into 
law.  If the limits are raised; I am certainly going to be a no on the Senate version; and I think 
I speak for the majority of the committee? I will not change my mind on that. 
 
Senator Bakke:  I see domestic violence as something totally different because there is an 
emotional component.  There is the emotion act of the attack and that makes a difference.  If 
I Rep. McWilliams walking down the street and get attacked by a complete stranger that is 
going to be devastating to me.  But to walk into my home where I should be safe and have 
somebo9dy who supposedly loves me attack me is going to attack me on all different levels.  
Not just the physical attack, but the emotional attack. I do think there is a difference and if we 
punish that differently or not is an entirely different matter. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I fully understand where you are coming from a legal point of view.  I would 
have to concur with the other Senators.  I think the deterrent part for me is what is important.  
So you get attacked on the streets you will never see that person again; they don’t know 
where you live and they don’t know how to get ahold of you again, they don’t know your 
name; none of that is involved here. You get attacked in your home where everybody knows 
where you are and they know where you live; they know everything about you; to not have a 
deterrent that is stronger on behalf of those victims is my concern. Even under b 
misdemeanor a c felony the judge still has the discretion.  He can go to the lowest or the 
highest, right? I think there is a strong difference there because the victims have a very 
different paths to walk afterwards. I think it is a graver crime and I think we have an epidemic 
of this going on.  I think we should put a line in on being in your home and I think we are 
stuck on that issue. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I would like to read the definition of a family member. I think that weighs 
allot into my thought. A family or household member means a spouse; parent, child, person 
related by blood or marriage, persons who are in a dating relationship, persons who are 
presently residing together or who have resided together in the past, persons who have a 
child together in the past, persons who have a child in common regardless of whether they 
are or have been married or have lives together at any time and for the purpose of the 
issuance of a domestic violence protection order any other person with a sufficient 
relationship to the abusing person as determined by the court under other sections. My 
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concern is we are not talking about people that have to continue to live together.  We could 
be talking about cousins, second cousins; or cousins-in-law so we are creating this higher 
level of punishment for someone who may assault even though the domestic relationship is 
very tenuous. 
  
Senator Myrdal:  I appreciate that.  Those people can still continue to find each other.  We 
talk about judiciary discretion.  I understand your concern. 
 
Representative Simons: I think in the House we have no appetite for what you propose. I 
think we are offering a good compromise. I think this is going to help us out.  I voted against 
the bill even as we wrote it but to say somebody the first time is going to be treated like that 
could be treated up to that many days is a major deal. This is adding tools in the tool box that 
they have never had before.  This is a real problem and we all recognize that.   
 
Rep. Vetter:  The other thing hearing from the Senators view; you are talking more from a 
husband and wife relationship.  If you know the person and you have the ability to not be 
around them because you know who they are versus if somebody that I don’t know attacks 
me and I don’t know who they are and they can come and get me again, I have no idea when 
they are coming or how to protect myself versus somebody that I know.  All these different 
family members you know who they are; you can avoid them and make your situation where 
you are no longer around them.  That is my prospective.  You are really center in basically 
with husband and wife. 
 
Senator Bakke:  I am looking at the version .03000 and what you are proposing that on page 
2, line 26 the class a misdemeanor you are recommending that be a class b misdemeanor.  
Line 27 you are saying instead of a class c felony. It would be a class a misdemeanor.  Then 
on the next page 3 at the top for b instead of a class c felony? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I think it was going to be a class a misdemeanor for subdivision b and 
a c felony for subdivision c. 
 
Senator Dwyer:  Aggravated assault is a class c felony; and against a person under 12 is a 
class b felony. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I will get my amendments drafted and perhaps even a Christmas tress 
version and distribute that between now and our next meeting. 
 
Recessed 
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Members Present:  Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman; Rep. Vetter, Rep. Simons, Senator Dwyer, 
Senator Myrdal, Senator Bakke. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones opened the conference committee on HB 1393.  (Attachment 1 & 2) 
Handed out the two proposed amendments .02002 and 02003.  Went through the two 
proposals and their proposals.  The amendments will make it consistent with current law 
making the first offense a b misdemeanor; second offense and a misdemeanor and if you 
look at the amendments for page 2, line 27 we are going to break out anything like the third 
offense or subsequent offense; which would make that a c felony.  That would be one thing 
that would be above and beyond the current statute; on page 3, line 3 a sub. C which is part 
of the language that the Senate added back for offenses for a victim 12 years or under.  That 
is the extent of the .02002 amendment.  The .02003 amendment we added one additional 
thing here that addresses some of the concerns that were raised by Ms. Moos and the CAWS 
group.  Their main concern with elevating that first offense to an A misdemeanor was the fact 
that they would like to get these offenders into the district court where they have more 
resources available to them. If the committee would indulge me, I would like to have Ms. 
Moos come up and talk a little bit about the resources available to both the victims and the 
offenders through the district court process.  That is why one the second amendment that I 
passed out we have added language that just says that a person charged with an offense 
under this section, the domestic violence section, must be prosecuted in the district court 
versus municipal court. 
  
Janelle Moos, CAWS:  Discussing difference between the resources available in district 
court versus municipal courts.  There were two issues in particular of why we want first 
offenders with a class c misdemeanor should be district court.  Judges are more likely to look 
at those cases; order them to what we call domestic violence treatment center programs.  
We now have a domestic violence treatment center in every judicial district. If you get these 
first time offenders in front of a district judge; knowing their resources are available; they can 
order that person to treatment.  It is a 24-week treatment program.  What we have seen in 
counties where this happens; in Cass county and Grand Forks county where these cases 
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are automatically moved to district court; Grand Forks county alone, when they get domestic 
violence treatment we see the number of 911 calls decrease dramatically. The number of re-
offenses by that particular person on that victim or on other victims reduces significantly and 
the number of protection orders against that person go down.   The other resource that is 
available in district court that is not as available in municipal is victim witness advocates. 
After Marcy’s law passed 27 counties had no available resources related to victim services.  
That goes down even more when you look at municipal courts.  If we get those offenders on 
that first offense in front of district court the victim’s will have access to victim witness 
coordinators that can help walk them through the process. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I am looking at these amendments.  I am not ok with this addition here.  I am 
we are giving quite a bit already when we are back to this plus I think a lot of the problems 
solved with this district court thing; I am reluctant to raise the penalty.    
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I would like to take more discussion on the amendment.  
 
Senator Bakke:  What are you objecting to? 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I am looking at .02003.  on the 3 line of page 2, line 27 after second insert 
offense; I have a problem with adding a felony.  
 
Senator Myrdal: Why?  If you are up to a third offense that is a serious indicator that this is 
an abusive situation.   
 
Rep. Vetter:  I am objecting to creating more felon’s.  My objective was to be consistent. I 
don’t’ want things to be different based on who the person is.  If I punch the mailman or if my 
wife punches me and then punches the mailman; why do, I get more protection or why is it 
worse if she punches me than if she punches the mailman?   If a child is being abused; if it 
is the mother that is doing it or the uncle, teacher or mailman; what difference does it make.  
What matters is the crime has been committed.  That is where I have an issue with it.  We 
are creating a new law and I think it should be consistent with the rest of assault.  
 
Senator Bakke:  For a third assault charge; what is the penalty? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  For a third assault charge it would be a misdemeanor; unless there are 
aggravating circumstances, then it goes up.  
 
Senator Bakke:  How many times do you have to assault someone before it gets to be a c 
felony?  
 
Rep. Roers Jones: I am not sure there are escalating in the simple assault section. For it to 
escalate to the felony level there has to be other aggravating circumstances. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  It isn’t ow many times; it is basically what happens like damage. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  From the House position there are other items that we are amending; 
we are doing is making this in line with what the law is currently.  I applauded the Senate 
efforts to increase any of the other penalty levels; I think the Senate was hoping to increase 
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the penalty levels from a b felony to an a felony; and I agree.  we don’t want to necessarily 
treat people differently on that.   I felt when we get to a third offense that we are looking at a 
difference class of situation than a typical individual who might assault someone in a bar fight 
or an isolated incident in the public realm. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  I think it is important to say we are dealing with domestic violence. I like 
this .02003 amendment for many reasons.  If you have the perpetrator doing it for a third 
time, there is encumbering upon our laws to have stricter deterrent for that and stronger 
protection. I think going to district court is a good move.  If we can get some help for these 
people, I commend you for this amendment. 
 
Senator Bakke:  I think the difference between your average assault it is probably not the 
same victim. If it was the same victim the judge would look at it differently than if you were 
somebody who had a simple assault against three totally different people. In the case of 
domestic violence, it is the same person; and it is a repeat offense on somebody can’t for 
some reason get away from this person. I have no problem with a class c felony for a third 
offense when it is the same person and the same incident. 
 
Senator Dwyer: What the amendments do is current law except for district court. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I think that is accurate, except for the third offense a class c felony. 
 
Senator Dwyer:  So everything is current law except for this third offense? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  That is accurate. 
 
Representative Simons: I am not ok with a c felony at all.  Our House committee has worked 
so hard to get away from felons.  We have a country full of felons.  Personally if I caught 
someone doing that to his wife or a loved one it would be better for the law to catch them 
than myself perhaps.  To put a class c felony on somebody is a major thing.   If the court 
system wants they can put a class c on them; I don’t want to mandate it. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  The court has discretion.  The court never would have the discretion to  
We are suggesting when the conduct keeps happening time and again they are going to 
have the opportunity and tools at their discretion where they are going to have the opportunity 
to have an evaluation and treatment and these people are coming back before the courts for 
a third time for the same type of assault on a family or household member.  No one wants to 
see more felons created; but we need to look at the fact this is not a victimless crime.   
 
Senator Myrdal:  Committee we need to remember deterrents.  We are looking at you have 
done it twice; you have had the opportunity for treatment; restoration and to change your life 
around.  If you do it a third time it is an escalating violence so the court can’t go above what 
we set in law.  If a c felony for a third offense for the same victim is too high; then I feel as a 
state, we have failed that victim and the perpetrator for allowing him or her to continue in that 
life style. 
 
Senator Dwyer:  So Rep. Simons you said you would be happy to become a felon because 
what you would do would be worse. 
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Representative Simons: Senator if more men thought like I do more people wouldn’t do 
those horrendous acts. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Class A misdemeanor is not a slap on the wrist.  It is up to a year in jail. We 
are talking about assault; not the b and c category where it is simple assault and it is three 
times.   
 
Rep. Roers Jones: I see we are about 5 minutes from the end of our time.  Shall we move 
the amendments today or do we want to adjourn and come back? 
 
Representative Simons: I think moving it from the court system we have right now is a great 
step in the right direction.  I think that in itself will help. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Moved Senate recede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
19.0939.02003. 
 
Senator Dwyer:  Seconded 
 
Roll Call Vote:  4   Yes   2   No   0   Absent; Failed since two from the House voted no. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Do we have an alternative amendment that anyone wants to put forward.  
 
Adjourned. 
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Members Present:  Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman; Rep. Vetter, Rep. Simons, Senator 
Dwyer, Absent; Senator Myrdal, Senator Bakke. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Opened the conference committee on HB 1393.   
 
Rep. Vetter: (Attachment #1) Proposed amendment. Went over the amendment. Basically 
we are putting all the penalties back and adds the language from Rep. Roers Jones bill where 
it says a person charged with the offense under this section must be prosecuted in district 
court.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Went through the proposed amendment and how it would apply.  
 
Rep. Vetter: It would be the .02003 amendment with only taking out an a class c felony for 
the third.   
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Continued going through the proposed amendment.  
 
Senator Myrdal: So basically the Christmas tree of that would be a class b misdemeanor for 
the first offense under subdivision and a class a misdemeanor for a second or subsequent 
offense? 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Correct.  Read through the changes to be sure we are all on the same 
page. We are just mirroring the current law under this domestic violence new section. 
 
Senator Bakke: This is a whole new section of law on domestic violence so there are no 
prior penalties that we are changing. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Motion for Senate recede from Senate amendments and amend as 
follows 19.0939.02004 
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Senator Bakke:  Seconded 
 
Discussion: 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  Yes that is correct. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  I think this is a compromise for now. All three of us on the Senate 
committee are disappointed that we couldn’t push through the felony on the third offense.  I 
think we can build on it now. I think this is an issue that will never go away, sadly. We are 
glad it will go to district court where they can get more justice where the perpetrator may get 
some help. This should be able to pass our chamber; I hope so we are beginning to address 
these more serious issues of domestic violence. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I appreciate the Senate’s willingness to work with us on this. I think we 
have solved the major concerns that the bill sponsor had with this with regard to having this 
section set out separately from the rest of the assaults for property tracking.  Also for getting 
these cases into district where they have different resources available to them. 
 
Roll Call Vote:   5   Yes    0   No    1   Absent   Carrier:  Rep. Roers Jones; Senator Bakke 
 
Adjourned. 
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Members present: Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman; Rep. Vetter, Rep. Simons, Senator 
Dwyer, Senator Myrdal, Senator Bakke  
 
Rep. Roers Jones: Opened the conference committee on HB 1393. When I was carrying 
the conference committee report to the floor yesterday there were a number of questions that 
came up about a wide range of topics. Everything from disciplining child, to district court. One 
of the questions from Rep. K. Koppelman was regarding page 3, line 4, the language that 
was added related to a Class C felony, he asked is this an increase offense level in the bill 
and is that something we were intending to do? I was thinking of the back and forth 
amendment process we had and I wasn’t certain if we had something included inadvertently? 
I then recognize this was indeed the language that we had included and this line just refers 
to what we were trying to do to harmonize the subdivision B and C under 2 on page two with 
the assault and aggravated assault. We are just copying the penalties from the assault and 
aggravated assault portions of the code over into this domestic violence section that we are 
creating. So it’s not increased penalties. We need to have a motion to send out the 
conference committee report as it was, I will take it back to the floor and have the background 
information so I can explain this is not something new.  
 
Senator Dwyer: I do believe we are reducing the penalty, if the offense is under subdivision 
B which is substantial bodily injury, aggravated assault is a felony. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  If you read it, a class A misdemeanor for an offense under subdivision 
B which is substantial bodily injury is an assault, it currently is a class A misdemeanor. A 
class C felony for an offense under subdivision C, which is serious bodily injury and that is 
the aggravated assault.  
 
Rep. Vetter:  If you look under page 2, A is simple assault, B is assault and C is aggravated 
assault.  
 
Rep. Vetter:  Made a motion to reconsider bill. 
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Senator Myrdal:  Second the motion.  
 
Roll Call Vote:    6   Yes    0   No   0   Absent 
 
Senator Myrdal: As far as the discipline of children or spanking and I did visit with a 
Legislature who had concerns about that and I checked with legal counsel and that definition 
is in code already.  
 
Rep. Roers Jones:  I will be prepared also to read from the sections in code and how that 
is already defined and laid out there.  I will talk about the fact that both the definition of bodily 
harm whether the concern came up it included physical pain. There was concern that anytime 
you discipline a child there would be physical pain that could be inflicted. We don’t want to 
try and change that definition because that is not what we are trying to change. But it would 
have implications on many other sections related to assault of domestic violence. related to 
people who are not your children, like dating partners, spouses, other household members 
where inflicting physical pain upon them would not be appropriate. We will be more prepared 
to address that question and indicate that if someone wants to look at redefining that section 
we should do it at another time. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  Motion Senate recede from the Senate amendments and further amend 
19.0930.02004. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Seconded 
 
Discussion: 
 
Vote yes 6, no 0, absent 0. 
 
Rep. Roers Jones will carry the bill to the House. 
 
Senator Bakke will carry the bill to the Senate.  
 
 



19.0939.02003 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Roers Jones 

April 18, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the House 
Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1393 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace "and" with an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 27, replace "];!" with "8" 

Page 2, line 27, after "second" insert "offense, and a class C felony for a third" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "];!" with "8" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. 

4. A person charged with an offense under this section must be prosecuted in 
district court." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0939.02003 



19.0939.02004 
Title.04000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
*

,c_\f-
Representative Vetter l.\\ er "'-�. April 19, 2019 � 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the House 
Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1393 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace "B" with "8." 

Page 3, line 3, replace ".6." with "8." 

Page 3, line 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. 

4. A person charged with an offense under this section must be prosecuted in 
district court." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0939.02004 



2019 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

HB 1393 as (re) engrossed 

House Judiciary Committee 
Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

Date: 4/17/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 

IZI SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Senator Myrdal 

Representatives 4/17 4/18 

Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman X X 

Rep. Vetter X X 

Rep. Simons X X 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 4 

House Carrier 

LC Number 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Yes No 

X 

X 

X 

I 'Z-

Seconded by: Senator Dwyer 

Senators 4/17 4/18 Yes No 

Senator Dwyer, Chairman X X X 

Senator Myrdal X X X 

Senator Bakke X X X 

Total Senate Vote .3 

No: 2 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier 

of amendment 

of engrossment ----------

Statement of purpose of amendment.19.0939.02003 Failed 



2019 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

HB 1393 as (re) engrossed 

House Judiciary Committee 
Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

Date: 4/17/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
IZI SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 
19.0939.02004 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Senator Myrdal 

Representatives 4/22/ 

Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman X 

Rep. Vetter X 

Rep. Simons X 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 5 

House Carrier Rep. Roers Jones 

LC Number 19.0939 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Yes No 

X 

X 

X 

3 

Seconded by: Senator Bakke 

Senators 4/22 Yes No 

Senator Dwyer, Chairman --- -----
Senator Myrdal X X 

Senator Bakke X X 

Total Senate Vote 2 

No: 0 Absent: 1 

Senate Carrier Senator Bakke 

02004 of amendment 

. 04000 of engrossment ----------

Statement of purpose of amendment As per proposed 19.0939.02004 changing a person charged 
with an offense under this section must be prosecuted in district court. 



Date: 4/24/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

2019 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

HB 1393 as engrossed 

House Judiciary Committee 
Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

IZI Reconsider 

Motion Made by: _R_e__.__p_. _V_e_tt_er _______ Seconded by: Senator Myrdal 

Representatives 4/24/ 

Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman X 
Rep. Vetter X 
Rep. Simons X 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 6 

House Carrier 

Yes 

X 
X 
X 

3 

No Senators 4/24 

Senator Dwyer, Chairman X 
Senator Myrdal X 
Senator Bakke X 

Total Senate Vote 

No: 0 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier 

Yes 

X 
X 
X 

3 

LC Number of amendment 

No 

LC Number of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

-----------



Date: 4/24/2019 
Roll Call Vote #:2 

2019 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

HB 1393 as engrossed 

House Judiciary Committee 
Action Taken O HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

0 HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
0 SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
IZI SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

Motion Made by: _R_ e�p_. _V_e_tt_er _______ Seconded by: Senator Myrdal 

Representatives 4/24/ 

Rep. Roers Jones, Chairman X 

Rep. Vetter X 

Rep. Simons X 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 6 

House Carrier Rep. Roers Jones 

LC Number 19.0930 

Yes 

X 

X 

X 

3 

No Senators 4/24 

Senator Dwyer, Chairman X 

Senator Myrdal X 

Senator Bakke X 

Total Senate Vote 

No: 0 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier Senator Bakke 

Yes 

X 

X 

X 

3 

02004 of amendment 

No 

LC Number . 04000 of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

-----------



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 23, 2019 7:07 AM 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_73_002 

Insert LC: 19.0939.02004 
House Carrier: Roers Jones 

Senate Carrier: Bakke 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1393, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Dwyer, Myrdal, Bakke and 

Reps. Roers Jones, Vetter, Simons) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from 
the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1189-1190, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place HB 1393 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the 
House Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1393 
be amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace ".6." with "6" 

Page 3, line 3, replace ".6." with "6" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. 

4. A person charged with an offense under this section must be prosecuted 
in district court." 

Renumber accordingly 

Engrossed HB 1393 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_73_002 



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 24, 2019 11:44AM 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_74_005 

Insert LC: 19.0939 .02004 
House Carrier: Roers Jones 

Senate Carrier: Bakke 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1393, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Dwyer, Myrdal, Bakke and 

Reps. Roers Jones, Vetter, Simons) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from 
the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1189-1190, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place H B 1393 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the 
House Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bil l No. 1393 
be amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace ".!:r' with "8" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "fr' with "8" 

Page 3, l ine 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. 

4. A person charged with an offense under this section must be prosecuted 
in district court. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Engrossed HB 1393 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_74_005 
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Test imony o n  H B  1393 
House J ud ic ia ry 
Febru a ry 6, 2019 

Cha ir  Kopp le  man a nd Members of the Committee, 

My name is Jane l l e  Moos and  I am the Executive Di recto r of the CAWS North Dakota . O u r  Coa l it ion 
i s  a membersh i p  based o rganizat ion that cons ists of 20 domestic vio l ence a nd ra pe cr is i s  centers 
that provide  se rv ices to victims of domestic vio l ence, sexua l  assau lt, and  sta l k i ng i n  a l l  53 count ies 
a nd the rese rvat ions  in North Dakota . I 'm speaking th is  morn i ng on  the i r  beha lf  i n  s uppo rt of H B  
1393.  

Last yea r  nea r ly 5,800 i nc idents of domestic vio l ence were reported to cr is is  i nte rvention  centers. 
N i nety two (92 )  percent of the victims were fema le and  seventy seven (77) percent of those victims 
reported be i ng p hys ica l ly a bused .  In at least 39% of the cases, the a buser had a h i story of a b us ive 
behavio r  with other a d u lts i nc l ud ing prio r  partners .  

Begin n i ng i n  the 1970's, efforts focused pr imar i ly on imp lementing leg is lat ion that crim ina l ized domestic 
violence .  Po l ice d epa rtments i nstituted p roa rrest or  ma ndatory a rrest po l ic ies, p rosecution i ncreased 
d ra m atica l ly, a nd the cou rts began us i ng a va riety of sanct ions such as  ja i l , p robation, and mandatory 
treatment .  At the same t ime, civi l lega l p rotect ions were expa nded to cover domestic issues, and  
p rotect ion a nd restra i n i ng orders became widespread .  

Under ly ing t h e  crim i n a l izat ion o f  domestic vio lence a nd t h e  associated lega l sa nctions  a re a variety of 
goa l s .  Deterrence of futu re crime, mora l  retri but ion, protect ion of vict ims and  society, rehab i l itation  of 
offenders, a nd repa i ri ng i nd ivid ua l  and  commun ity harm a re just some of the goa l s  that a re re lated to 
d iffe rent l ega l sa n ct ions, though not a lways c lea r ly . For exam p le, j a i l  or pr ison sentences ca n be viewed 
as theoretica l l y  l i n ked  to deterrence, retri bution,  a nd protect ion, wh i l e  fi nes a re re l ated to deterrence, 
retri but ion,  a nd repa i ri ng  harm.  For exa mple, in some j u risd ict io ns  a crim ina l  sentence may i nc lude a ny 
combinat ion of i nca rceration, probation,  commun ity service, fi nes, no-contact orde rs, va rio us 
p roh ib it ions  such a s  no guns or  a lco ho l ,  a nd m u lt ip le  types of treatment. 

Cu rrent ly, in Nort h  Da kota, Chapter 12 . 1-17-01 defi nes s imp le assa u lt fo r fa m i ly and househo ld 
members (domestic vio le nce) i n  subd iv is ion b sta rt i ng on  l i ne 4 on  page 2 of the b i l l  a nd  is cu rre ntly 
c l ass ified as a c l ass  8 m isdemeanor with a maximum pena lty of 30 days i n  ja i l ,  a $500 fi ne or  both . Data 
gathe red a nd reported by BCI re lated to m isdemea nor s im p le assa u lt a rrests on a fa m i ly or  househo ld  
member age 18  + (N DCC 14-07 . 1-01 )  is h igh l ig hted be low by cou nty with  h ighest vo l ume  of cases: 

• 
Burle igh-493, Ca ss-980, G rand  Forks-26 1, McKenz ie-63, Mo rton-142, Ramsey-7 1, R ich la nd-72 

BISMARCK 222.8370 • BOTTIN EAU 228-2028 • DEVILS LAKE 888.662.7378 • D ICK INSON 225.4506 • ELLENDALE 349.4729 • FARGO 293.7273 • FORT BERTHOLD RESERVATION 627.41 7 1  

GRAFTON 352 .4242 • GRAND  FORKS 746.0405 • JAMESTOWN 888.353.7233 • McLEAN COUNTY 462.8643 • MERCER COUNTY 873.2274 • M INOT 852.2258 • RANSOM COUNTY 683.506 1 

S P I R I T  L A K E  7 6 6 . 1 8 1 6  • STA N L E Y  6 2 8 . 3 2 3 3  • TURTLE  M O U NTA I N  R E S ERVATI O N  4 7 7 .0002 • VALLEY  C ITY 845 .0078  • WAH P ETON 642 . 2 1 1 5  • W I L L I STON 572 . 0 7 57  



• 

• 

-

Stark-120, Stutsman-130, Wa rd-175 a nd Wi l l iams-180 

The cu rrent pract ice in most counties with the except ion of Cass a nd G rand  Fo rks, 1 st offense 
m isdemea nor s imp le  assa u l t  ca ses a re heard in m un ic ipa l court if the offense occu rred in city l im its, 
otherwise they a re hea rd in d istrict court .  Bur le igh County a lso used to hear  m isdemea nor  DV cases i n  
d istrict cou rt but  afte r Ma rsy's Law was passed they dec l ined t he  contract with t he  city d ue to  the 
a nt ic i pated i ncreased case load so those cases a re hea rd in mun ic ipa l co u rt aga i n .  Second  a nd 
subseq uent offenses a re a l l  hea rd i n  d istrict cou rt i n  a l l  counties. 

As you ca n see from the data and the expla nation of cu rrent practices, case loads in d i str ict cou rt shou ld  
not  "exp lode" or  i ncrease beyond the  capacity to  prosecute or provide services for vict ims i n  these 
cases. 

In domestic v io l ence cases, the r isk of re-offense, v io l ence  and  letha l ity a re usua l ly ve ry high. Two 
separate stud ies  conducted by the American P ro bat io n  a n d  Paro l e  Assoc iat ion noted that a bout 2/3 
of  state p risone rs who were serving t ime for domestic v io lence had a p ri o r  convict i on  a n d  i n  
a nother study conducted nea r ly 4 out of  5 i n mates s urveyed i n  loca l j a i l s  fo r domest ic v io lence had 
p revi ou s  c rim i n a l  j u st i ce system i nvo lvement .  

HB 1393 p roposes 2 cha nges i n  the statute. F i rst, the b i l l  wou l d  c reate a new sectio n  ca l l ed  
domest ic v io lence ( l i ne  18, page 2 ) .  The second change p roposed i n  H B  1393  cha nges the fi rst 
offense of ( s imp l e  assau l t )  domestic vio l ence from a c lass  B to a c lass A misdemean o r  wh ich 
i n c reases the pena lty from 30 days to u p  to 1 year in  ja i l  a nd i ncrease the fi ne  to $3,000 vs . $500. 

The reason  for the changes proposed in  HB 1393 i n c l ude :  

Eas ier  to  t ra ck  d omestic vio l ence (s imp l e  assa u lt )  cases i n  o rde r  to u ndersta nd  t he  true 
extent of  domest ic vio l ence cases by county. Th i s  cou l d  lead to cha nges i n  po l i c ies, p ract ices 
a n d  fu nd i ng i f  we a re better able to study the i nc idents of domestic vio lence in o rder  to 
decrease the l i ke l i hood of rec id iv ism i n c l ud i ng m o re ser ious assau lts .  
Track  sentenc i ng i n  cases a n d  order to domest ic v io lence offender  treatment  a n d  p ro bati on .  
S im p le  a ssau l t  ( domest ic vio lence) o n  a fa m i ly o r  househo l d  membe r  sho u l d  be ta ken more 
se ri ous l y  a nd  be  c lassif ied as  an  A vs. B m i sdemeanor  a nd  be cons idered sepa rate ly from bar  
fights o r  other  a ssau lts on non-househo ld  mem bers.  Assa u l ts on  pa rtners a re more 
" i ntimate" i n  na tu re and  the l i ke l i hood of rec id iv ism is h igh ( and  letha l ity i n c reases with 
each a rrest) 
Cost effective a n d  in  l i n e  with Just ice Rei nvestment- i n c l ud i ng o rde rs fo r t reatment- wh ich  is  
l ess cost ly tha n pr ison which cou ld cost u pwa rds of $ 100/day which is l i ke ly  to happen with 
the h igh r isk of  reci d iv ism i n  domestic vio l ence cases l ead ing to fe lony  offenses i nc l ud ing 
aggravated assa u l t o r  m u rder. 

I e ncou rage you to look favo ra b ly on H B  1393 a nd wou ld  be happy to a nswe r a ny quest ions that you 
may have. Tha n k  you .  



• 

• 

• 

N O R T H  D A K O T A 

D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E FA C T S 

were reported to 
cris i s  in terven t ion 

centers in  
North Dakota  

received servi ces 
from 19 

cri s i s  in tervent ion 
centers in 

North D akota 

....... .., ...... 

92% of t he  v ict i ms  were women .  

....... ........ 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1  

91 wom e n  (2% of tota l new v ict ims) were 

p regnan t  at t he  t ime  they were assa u l ted 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 , , , , , ,  

14% of new v ict ims  were peop l e  w i th  

d i sa b i l i t i es Of those 14% were peop l e  
w i th  d eve l op menta l d i sa b i l i t ies ,  35% h a d  
phys ica l d i sa b i l i t ies  a nd 5 1  % were peop l e  

w i t h  m enta l hea l t h  d isa b i l i t ies .  

0 At l east 2 .934 c h i l d ren were d i rect l y  

[[J[f] i m pacted by t hese i n c i d ents .  

t l l l l l l l l ! ! l l l l l l l l ! l l l ! ! l l l l l i l l ! l l l ! l l l ! l l l l l l l l l i i i i 1 / i i i l i i l \ l 5 l l i ! i l i i ! ! ! !  i ! i ! ! ] ! i ' i i l i ! ! ! ! ! ! l ! ! ! l ! I !  

At l east  19% of t h e  vi ct i ms  were u nd e r  t he  
age of 25  At l east 1% were u nde r  t he  age 
of 18 .  

2 0 1 7 
........ 
......... . ........ ······ .......... 

...... . ..... ....... ....... 

C A S E b y  C A S E 

A t  least 77% of victims served were 

physica l ly a b used. 

In at least 39% of  coses. the a b user had a 
h istory of a b usive behavior with  other  adu lts 
inc luding prior partners . 

Weapons were used in a t  least 14% of the 
coses ident ified. G u ns were used in 14% of  
t h e  cases a n d  lm ives were used in 16% of the 
cases in vo lving weapons. 

A lco h o l  use by a buser o n ly was indica ted in 
28% of t h e  new cases. A lcoh o l  use by both 
victim and offender  was indica ted in 5% of 
t h e  cases . 

A DV cAcv <'{/i:� 
28% of t he  v ict i m s  were se lf- referred to 
domest ic v i o l ence  progra ms ;  30% were 

referred by l aw en fo rcem ent .  

Domest ic v io l ence p rogra ms  p rovi d ed 
v ict i m ass ista nce w i th  803 emergency 

p rotect ion  o rd e rs .  

l l l l l l f l l l l l l l l l l l l l t l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l ! ! l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l  

,..ne\.V ::: undup !icoted fo r ca jendor year 

M a rc h  2 0 1 8  D o n1 est :c  V , o l e n c e  Stabsbcs a ,·e corn p d e d  by Ct,WS N o rth Da kota for t h e  S t a t e  H ea l t h  D epa rt m e n t  

CAWS N o rth  Da kot a 5 2 1  E M a , ,, Ave, S u i t e  2 5 0 .  B i s n1 a r c k. N D  585Cl I 701 .255 .62 4 0  I www . c a ws n o rt h d a kota .o rg 
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The funding provided for 
Battering I ntervention Service: i: vital 

$941 ,069 I nvested 

201 7-20 1 9 

t i  [ I k t l [ It • 11 

Other Sources: $64 1 ,069 

350 

300 

250 

200 

1 50 

1 00  

50 

201 6 20 1 8  

52% increase 

in offenders reached 

Battering Intervention Service: have been 
expanded to four region: in ND 

0 Progr-•m• I n  Compliance & NDDoH l=unm New Progr•m• 

, 1 3,q-;  -- f , 
Domestic Vio nee ffenaer Treatment 
Fund ing made it possib le  to : 

• Expand  se rvices to fou r  new reg ions i n  N D  

• I n crease the n u m ber  of affo rdab le  g ro u ps 
offered statewide  

• Ensu re a l l  p ro g ra m s  fu nded a re com p l i a nt 
with the N D  Batterers' Treatment Sta n d a rds 
and i m p l e m e nti n g  evid e n ce- based 
p rogra m m i n g  I 

Comments from participants: 

"/ didn 't th in k my [a busive] reactions 
were having such an impact on my 
children . . .  I don 't want them th inking 
it's ok to treat people th is way beca use 
they've seen me set the example. " 

"Before th is class, I was not able to 
recognize the severity of the abuse; 
I was not even willing to consider it. I 
was in complete denial. This class has 
helped me become more a wa re and 
honest with myself. "  

The Com m u n ity Vio lence I ntervention Center's 
Coord i nated Com m u n ity Response Project ( G rand 
Forks, ND)  conducted a study that tracked 343 
ma le  offenders who comp leted the New Choices 
p rog ra m from 2004-20 1 5 .  Offenders experienced : 

• 73% decrease i n  l aw enfo rcement i nvo lvement 

• 89% decrease i n  cri m i n a l  charges 
• 87% decrease in p rotection  o rders fi led 

The initial investment of evidence-based 
intervention leads to tax dollar savings in 
the criminal justice system along with a new 
generation of children that are positively impacted. 

Al l p rog ram s  funded a re com p l i ant with the North Dakota 
Matterers' Treatme nt Sta n d a rds wh ich requ i res: co l l a boratio n  
...,ith cri m i n a l  j u st ice agencies ;  attention  to l etha l ity; po l ic ies 

i n co rpo rati n g  accou nta b i l ity and  safety p l ann i ng  with v ict i ms.  

Al l p rog rams  use an evidence-based 
mode l  that has been proven to reduce 
vio lent offenses (more information 
availab le on crimesolutions.gov). 

Info rmation p rovided in partnership by the ND Department of  Hea lth (NDDoH), CAWS ND and ND A llia nce to End Partner Abuse 
Con ta ct Informatio n :  Ja n e lle Moos, CA WS ND Exec. Director, 70 1 -255-6240 ext. 1 1 6 I To respect client  confidentia lity, pictures a bove have been a ltered. 
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19.0939.01001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 2 - / � ---) Cf 
the House Judiciary Committee ,0 , 

February 11, 2019 .r , 1 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

Page 2, line 26, replace "class A" with "class B" 

Page 2, line 27, replace "class C felony" with "class B misdemeanor" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "class C felony" with "class B misdemeanor" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0939.01001 
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Testimony on H B  1393 
Senate J u d ic ia ry 
M a rch 1 1, 2019 

521 E. Main Ave. Su ite 250, B ismarck, N .D. 5850 1 
(P) 70 1 .255 .6240 (TF) 1 .888.255 .6240 (F) 70 1 .255 . 1 904 

www.cawsnorthdakota .org 
facebook.com/CAWSNorthDakota •Twitter @CAWSNorthDakota 

Cha i r  La rson a nd  Members of the Com m ittee, 

My n a m e  i s  J a ne l l e  Moos a nd  I am the Execut ive D i recto r of the CAWS No rth  Da kota .  Ou r  
Coa l it ion  i s  a membersh i p  based orga n i zat ion that cons i sts o f  20  domest i c  vio l e n ce a n d  rape  
cr i s i s  centers that p rovide servi ces to v ict ims  o f  domest ic  vio l e nce, sexu a l  assa u lt, a n d  sta l k i n g  
i n  a l l  53  cou nt ies a n d  t h e  reservations  i n  No rth  Dakota .  I 'm  speak i ng  t h i s  mo r n i n g  o n  the i r  
b e h a lf i n  s upport of H B  1393 . 

Last yea r  n ea r ly  5,800 i nc idents of domest ic  v io l e nce were repo rted to cr i s i s  i nte rvent ion  
cente rs .  N i n ety two (92}  pe rcent of  th e v ict ims  were fem a l e  and seventy seven (77 )  pe rcent of  
t hose v ict ims  reported be i ng  phys ica l l y  a bu sed .  I n  at l e a st 39% of the  cases, t he  a buse r  had a 

• 
h i story of a bu sive behavio r  with othe r  a d u lts i n c l u d i ng p rior p a rtne rs .  

Begi n n i ng  i n  t he  1970's, efforts focused p rima ri l y  o n  imp l ement i ng  legi s l at ion  t h at c r im i n a l i z ed  
domest ic vio l e nce .  Po l ice depa rtments i n st ituted p roa rrest o r  mand atory a rrest po l ic i es, 
p rosecut io n  i n creased d ramat ica l ly, a n d  the cou rts b ega n us i ng  a va ri ety of s a n ct ions  such  a s  
j a i l , p robat ion ,  a n d  mandatory treatm ent .  At the  s ame  t i m e, c iv i l l ega l p rotect ions  we re 
expanded  to cover domest ic issu es, a n d  p rotect ion  a n d  rest ra i n i ng o rde rs beca m e  wi desp re ad .  

U n de r ly i ng  the  crim i n a l i zat ion o f  dom est ic  v io l e nce a n d  t he  a ssoc iated l ega l  sa n ct ions  a re a 
var iety of goa l s .  Deterrence of futu re c rime, mo ra l  retr i b ut ion ,  p rotect ion  of v ict ims  a n d  
soc iety, reha b i l itat ion o f  offenders, a n d  repa i r i n g  i n d ivi d u a l  a n d  com m u n ity h a rm a re j u st som e  
o f  t h e  goa l s  t hat a re re l ated t o  d iffe rent l ega l sa nct ions, though  not a lways c l ea r ly .  For  
examp l e, j a i l  o r  p ri son sentences ca n b e  v iewed as theo ret ica l ly l i n ked  to d eterre nce, 
retri b ut ion ,  a n d  p rotect ion ,  wh i l e  fi nes  a re re l ated to d eterren ce, ret r i b ut ion ,  a n d  repa i r i n g  
h a rm .  Fo r  exam p le, i n  s ome  j u r isd i ct i o n s  a cr i m i n a l  senten ce may  i n c l u de  a ny com b i n at ion o f  
i n ca rcerat ion ,  p robat ion ,  com mun ity se rvi ce, fi n es, no-contact o rde rs, va r io u s  p ro h i b it ions  such  
as  no  gu n s  o r  a l coho l ,  a nd  m u lt i p l e  types of treatment .  

Cu rrent ly, in No rth D a kota statute Ch a pter  12 . 1 -17-01 d efi n es s imp l e  assa u lt fo r fa m i ly a n d  

• househo l d  mem bers ( domest ic vio l ence )  i n  s u bd ivi s i on  b sta rt i ng  on  l i n e  4 on  p age 2 of t he  b i l l  
a n d  i s  cu rrent ly c l ass ifi ed a s  a c l a ss  B m i sdemeano r  with a max i m u m  pena lty o f  30 d ays i n  j a i l ,  a 

BISMARCK 222.8370 • BOTTINEAU 228-2028 • DEVILS LAKE 888.662.7378 • D ICK INSON 225.4506 • ELLENDALE 349.4729 • FARGO 293.7273 • FORT BERTHOLD RESERVATION 627.4 1 7 1  

GRAFTON 352.4242 • GRAND FORKS 746.0405 • JAMESTOWN 888.353.7233 • McLEAN COUNTY 462.8643 • MERCER COUNTY 873.2274 • M INOT 852.2258 • RANSOM COUNTY 683.5061 

S P I R I T  LAKE  766 . 1 8 1 6  • STA N LEY 628 . 3 233  • TU RTLE M O U NTA I N  R E S E RVAT ION  477 .0002 • VALLEY  C ITY  845 .0078  • WAH P ETON 642 .2 1 1 5  • W I L L I STON 5 72 . 0 7 5 7  
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$500 fi n e  o r  both .  Data gathe red and repo rted by BC I  re lated to m i s demeano r  s imp l e  assa u lt 

a rrests o n  a fa m i ly o r  househo ld  mem be r  age 18 + ( N DCC 14-07 . 1-01 )  i s  h i gh l ighted be low by 

cou nty with h ighest vol ume  of cases : 

Bu r le igh-493, Cass-980, Grand  Fo rks-261,  McKenz i e-63, Mo rton- 142, R amsey-71 ,  R i ch l a n d-72 

Sta rk- 120, Stutsma n-130, Wa rd-175 and  Wi l l i am s- 180 

Th e cu rrent p ract ice in most cou nties with the except ion of Cass a n d  G ra n d  Fo rks, 1st offen se  

m i sdemeano r  s imp l e  ass au lt cases a re h e a rd i n  m u n i c i p a l  cou rt if t h e  offense  occu rred i n  city 

l i m its, othe rwise they a re hea rd in d i st r i ct cou rt .  Al l  m is demeano r  s imp l e  assa u lt ( DV) cases  a re 

he a rd i n  d i st r i ct cou rt .  Bu r le igh County a l so used  to h e a r  m i s demeano r  DV cases i n  d i st r i ct 

cou rt b ut after  M a rsy' s Law was passed t hey d ec l i n ed  t he  contract with t he  c ity d u e  to t he  

a nt i c ipated i n creased case l o ad  so  those cases a re h e a rd i n  m u n ic i p a l  cou rt aga i n .  Seco n d  and  

su bseq u ent offenses a re a l l  hea rd in  d i st r i ct cou rt i n  a l l  cou nt ies .  

As  you can  see from the  d ata a nd  the exp l a n at ion  of cu rrent  p ract i ces, case loads  i n  d i st r i ct 

cou rt s hou l d  n ot "exp lode" o r  i n crease beyond  the  ca pacity to p rosecute o r  p rovi d e  se rv ices fo r 

v ict ims  i n  these  cases .  

I n domesti c  vio l e n ce cases, the  r isk of re-offen se, v io l e n ce a n d  l et h a l ity a re u s u a l ly ve ry h igh . 

Two sepa rate stud i e s  conducted by t he  Ameri ca n  Probat ion a n d  P a ro l e  Associ a t ion  n oted t h at 

about 2/3 of state p ri sone rs who were se rvi n g  t ime  fo r domest ic  v io l e n ce h ad  a p rio r  convi ct ion  

and  i n  anothe r  study  cond ucted nea rly  4 out  of 5 i n m ates s u rveyed i n  loca l j a i l s  fo r dom est ic  

v io l ence h ad  p revious  cr im i n a l  j u stice system i n vo lvem e nt .  

HB 1393 p roposes 2 c hanges i n  the statute .  F i rst, t he  b i l l  wou l d  c reate  a n ew sect i on  ca l l e d  

domest ic  vio l e n ce ( l i n e  18, page 2 ) .  Th e second  c h ange p roposed i n  t h e  or igi n a l  d raft o f  HB  

1393  ch a nges t he  fi rst offense o f  (s imp l e  ass au lt )  d o mest ic  v io l e n ce from a c l ass  B t o  a c l a ss A 

m isdemeanor  wh ich i n creases the  pena lty from 30 d ays to u p  to 1 yea r  i n  j a i l  a n d  i n crease  t h e  

fi n e  t o  $3,000 vs .  $500 .  

Th e reason fo r the cha nges p roposed i n  HB 1393 i n c l u de :  

Eas i e r  t o  track domest ic  vi o l ence (s i m p l e  assa u lt )  cases i n  o rde r  to u n de rsta n d  t h e  t r u e  

extent o f  dom est ic  vio l ence cases by  co u nty. T h i s  co u l d  l e ad  t o  c h a nges i n  po l i c i e s, 

p ract ices a nd  fu nd i ng  if we a re better  a b l e  to study  t he  i n c i dents of domest ic vio l e n ce i n  

o rde r  t o  decrease t h e  l i ke l i hood o f  reci d iv i sm i n c l u d i n g  mo re seri ou s  ass au lts .  

Track sentenc i ng  i n  cases and o rde r  to domest ic vio l e n ce offe nde r  t reat m ent a n d  

p robat ion 

z 
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Si m p l e  assa u lt ( domest ic  v io lence )  o n  a fa m i ly o r  househo ld  membe r  s hou l d  be  taken  

more ser ious ly  a n d  be c l ass ified as an  A vs .  B m i sd emeano r  wh ich s hou l d  b e  con s i de red  

sepa rate ly from ba r  fights or  othe r  ass au lts o n  n on -househo ld  m e m be rs .  Ass a u lts o n  

p a rtne rs more " int im ate" i n  natu re a n d  t h e  l i ke l i hood o f  reci d iv i sm i s  h igh ( a n d  l eth a l ity 

i n creases with each a r rest ) 

Cost effect ive a n d  i n  l i n e  with J u st ice Re i nvest m ent- i n c l u d i ng  o rd e rs fo r t reatment­

wh ich  i s  l ess cost ly  t han  p rison wh ich  cou l d  cost u pwards of $ 100/d ay wh i ch  i s  l i ke ly  to 

h a ppen  with the h igh ri s k  of reci d iv i sm in domest ic vio l e n ce cases l e a d i n g  to fe lony  

offenses i n c l u d i ng  aggravated assa u lt o r  m u rd er .  

I e n cou rage you to look  favora b ly on HB 1393 a n d  re i n state t he  b i l l  to i ts  o r igi n a l  fo rm that 

doesn 't i n c l ude  the  House Am end ments t h at c h a nge t h e  pen a lty back  to a B m isdemeano r  

i n stead o f  the  p roposed e n han ced pena lty fo r domest i c  v io l e nce assau lts ( o r  a n  A 

m isdemeanor) a nd  wou l d  be h a ppy to a n swer a n y  q uest ions  t h at you may  h ave .  Tha n k  you . 



• 

• 

• 

N O R T H  

D O M E S T I C  V I O L E N C E 
FATA L I T Y R E P O R T 

2 0 17 

Betwe e n  1 9 9 8-2 0 1 7, 45% of d eaths  d u e  to h o m ic i d e  i nvolved d o mest i c vio l e n ce .  77% of  fem a l e  
h o m ic i d e  vi ct i ms  were ki l l e d  i n  d o m est ic v io l e n ce i n c i d e n ts,  c o m p a re d  t o  3 1 % o f  m a l es .  

I n  2 0 1 7, 4 o f  th e l 2 h o m ic ides  i n  N orth D a kota were d o m est ic  v i o l e n ce re l a ted . 

46% 
of female deaths  i n  domestic vio lence 

incidents involved firearms 

co rn f= :o red IC• �� U
(
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d-?o t h s  i n  

DOM EST IC  VIOLE N CE 

HOM IC I D ES I N  2017 

Esta b l i s hed  i n  2 0  l l ,  t he  D o m est ic  Vi o l e n ce Fa ta l i ty Review C o m m i ss i o n  reviews d o me sti c 
v io l e n ce dea ths  t ha t  h ave occu rred i n  t h e  state a n d  reco m m e n d s  po l i c ies  a n d  p rotoco l s  to h e l p  
p reven t  futu re i n c i d e n ts o f  d o m es t i c  v io l e n ce a n d  res u l t i n g  fata l i t ies  ( N . D . C . C .  1 4-07.  1 -2 0 )  



D O l'v1 E S T I C  V I O L E N C E  I N  N O R T H  D A K O TA 

"In One Day" 

295 V I CTI M S  S E RV E D  I N  O N E  DAY September 1 3  '.,'017 

1 2 2 d o m est i c v io lence v ic t i m s  fou n d  refu g e  i n  emergency she l ters  o r  tra n si t i o n a l  
h o u s i n g  p rovid e d  b y  l o c a l  d o mest i c  v io lence  p rog ra m s .  

1 7 3  a d u l ts a n d  c h i l d re n  rece ived n on-res iden ti a l  ass ista nce  a n d  serv ices, 
i n cl u d i n g  cou n se l i n g , l e g a l  a dvoca cy, a n d  ch i l d ren ' s  suppor t  g rou ps .  

71  H OT L I N E  CALLS A N SW E R E D  

Dom est ic v i o l e n ce h otl i n e s  a re a l i fe l i ne For v ict im s  i n  d a n g e r, p rovid i n g  support, 
i n fo rm at ion ,  sa fety p l a n n i n g, a n d  resources .  I n  the  2 4-h our  su rvey per iod ,  
d o m est i c  vi o l e n ce p rog ra m s  a n swered m o re th a n  6 h ot l i n e  ca l l s  every h o u r. 

1 0  U N M ET R E Q U ESTS F O R  S E RVI CES I N  O N E DAY 

6 (60%)  were For h o u s i n g .  

Vict i m s  m a d e  req u ests fo r serv ices t h a t  cou l d  n ot be  provided  beca use  p rog ra m s  
d i d  n ot h a ve t h e  resou rces  t o  p rov ide  these serv ices .  

2 0 1 7 N O R T H  D A K O TA 
D O l'v1 E S T I C  V I O L E N C E FA C T S  

a ­
a ­
a -

I n  a t  l e a st 3 9% of cases, the a buser  h a d  a h i story of  
a b u sive behav ior  wi th  oth e r  a d u lts i n c l u d i n g  pr ior  
p a rtners .  

In  a t  l e a st 3 7% of cases, the a buser  had a h i story of 
a b u sive behav ior  wi th  oth e r  a d u l ts  i n c l u d i n g  pr io r  
pa rtn ers .  

Wea pons were u sed i n  a t  l e a st 1 4% of  the 
cases  i dent i f ie d .  G u n s  were u sed i n  1 4 % of the 
cases  and kn ives were u sed i n  1 6% of t h e  cases  
i n vo lv i n g  wea p o n s .  

• 

• 

• 
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F I N D I N G S & R E C O tv1 tv1 E N D A T I O N S 

I 
D O M E ST I C  V I O L E N C E  C O U RT 

Severa l fa ctors were com m o n  i n  a l l  fata l ity review cases  tha t  h a ve been  rev iewed by t he  DVF R  
Com m i ss ion  s i n ce 2 0  l l i n c l u d i n g  one or  both pa rt ies h avi n g  a h i story of d o m est ic vio l e n ce i n c i d e n ts 
( i n the cu rrent  a n d  previo u s  re la tionsh i ps ) ;  t he  m a ior i ty of the  i n c i d ents  resu l ted  i n  i nvolve m e n t  with 
law e n forcement  a n d  th e cr i m i n a l  j ust ice system .  In m a ny i n sta n ces, m u l t i p l e  i u d g e s  h e a rd a n d  m a d e  
dec i s ions  a bout  ca ses i nvo lv in g t h e  sa m e  vict i m a n d  off e n d e r  a n d  m a y  h ave m i ssed opportu n ities  to 
m a ke conn ect ions  o r  d eterm i n e  l eth a l i ty  in cases .  

Dom est ic V io lence  Court i s  a ded icated d o m est ic  v io l e n ce cri m i n a l  cou rt  th a t  i n c l u des  a l l  fe l ony 
a n d  m i sdem e a n o r  cases i nvolv i n g  one o r  m o re a l l egat ions  of  d o m est ic v io l ence occu r ri n g  betwe e n  
i nt im a te pa rtn ers, i n cl u d i n g  re la t ionsh ips  t h a t  i nvolve cu r ren t  a n d  for m e r  da ti n g  re l a tionsh ips, 
coha bitat i n g  coup les  o r  peopl e  with c h i l d re n  in com m o n .  The c r i m i n a l  cou rt u t i l izes c iv i l p rotective 
ord ers as a tool  to d i s a rm batterers .  

R E CO M M E N DAT I O N  

Pursue the legisla tive and policy changes necessary to create a domestic violence court 
pilot progra m in North Da kota . 

R ES U LT :  65th Legislative Assemb ly 

S B  2309 Domestic vio lence court .  ( N . D . C . C .  1 4-07. 1 -0 8 . 1 . )  

T h e  d i str ict court m a y  req u i re a n  i n d iv id u a l  w h o  h a s  com m itted a c ri m e  i nvolvi n g 
domest ic v io lence, a s  d efined  i n  th i s  c h a pter, o r  who h a s  v io l ated a d o m e sti c v io lence  
protect ion order  to com p lete d o m e st ic  vi o l e n ce trea tm ent  under  t he  d i rect io n  of t he  
domest ic v io lence  court program a s  a cond i t ion  of p roba t ion  i n  a ccord a n ce with 
r u l e s  a d o pted by the  su p re m e  cou rt .  I f  t he  d i str ict  court f in d s  a defe n d a n t  has fa i l e d  
to u n d ergo a n  eva l u at ion or  comp lete trea tmen t  o r  h a s  v io la te d  a ny con d it ion o f  
probat ion ,  the  d i str ict  court s h a l l  revoke the defe n d a nt 's  p robat ion  a n d  s h a l l  sentence 
t he  d efe n d a n t  i n  a ccord a n ce wi th  c h a pter l 2 . 1 -3 2 .  

https ://www. leg i s . n d .g ov/ assembly/ 65-201 7 / documents/1 7-8 1 63-02000 . pd f  

Sources: Annua l Cr ime a n d  Homic ide Repor ts ,  OHice ol Att orney Gener al ;  CAWS North Dakota 

Lo 



F I N D I N G S & R E C O tv1 tv1 E N D AT I O N S  

I 
F I R E A R M S  R E M O VA L  

As previous ly  n oted, person s  k i l l ed  i n  domest ic vio l e nce i nc idents were more l i ke ly  to be k i l l ed  with a 
firea rm tha n  those k i l l ed  i n  non-do mest ic vio l e nce i nc idents .  

R E C O M M E N DAT I O N  

Enhance s ta tute related to the au thority of law enforcement  to remove firearms in 
domestic violence incidents and protection order viola tions .  

R ES U LT :  65th Legis lat ive Assem bly 

H B  1 402 - Sur rende r  of fi rearms or  other  dangerous weapons  pursuan t  to domestic 
v io lence protect ion o rde rs ( subsect ion 4 of sect ion 1 4-07 . 1 -02 . )  

https ://www. leg is . n d . gov/ assemb ly/ 65-201 7 / documents/1 7-083 6-02000. pdf  
a ccordance wi th  chapter 1 2 . 1 -3 2 .  

N OT I C E  A N D S E RV I C E  O F  O R D E R S 

Vict im s  often app ly for o r  receive th ree types of o rders i n  domest ic v io l ence i n c iden ts - domestic 
v io l ence protect i on  orders ( N DCC) ,  d i so rder ly  conduct restra i n i ng  order ( N DCC) ,  o r  a cr i m i n a l  n o  
contact order  o r  order p roh ib i t i ng  contact a s  a cond it ion o f  bon d .  Cu rren tly, there i s  n o  process for 
strea m l i n i ng the t ra n sm iss ion  of a n  o rde r  from the court to the agency respon sib l e  for e nte r i ng it i n to 
a da tabase, serv i ng  the o rde r  a n d  p rovid i ng n ot ice ( L E )  wh ich l eads  to a ga p  in safety for vict i m s .  

R E C O M M E N DAT I O N  

Pursue the leg is la tive and policy changes necessary to create language and the process 
to require submission of da ta related to a ll orders into a statewide sys tem .  

R ES U LT :  65th Leg is la t ive Assernbly 

(SB 2309)  1 2-60-2 3 .  Bu reau  to ma inta i n  reg istry of p rotect ion orders, o rders 
p roh ibit i ng  contact, a nd  restra i n i ng  orders .  

ht tps ://www. leg i s . n d . gov/ assembly/ 65-201 7 / documents/1 7-8 1 63-02000.pd f  

Sources :  Annua l  Cr ime ancl Homic ide Repor ts . OHice of Att orney Genera l ;  CAWS Nor 1h  Dakota 
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F I N D I N G S & R E C O IV1 M E N D A T I O N S 

I 
D O M E ST I C  V I O L E N C E  O F F E N D E R  T R E AT M E N T  

U n d e r  c urren t  N D  l a w, j u dges a re m a n d ated to sente n ce a n  i n d iv i d u a l  c h a rged  with a n  offen se 
u n d e r  sect ion 1 2 . 1 - 1 7-0 1 ,  1 2 . 1 - 1 7-0 1 . l ,  1 2 . 1 - 1 7-0 2 ,  1 2 . 1 - 1 7-0 3 ,  1 2 . 1 - 1 7-04, o r  1 2 . 1 - 1 7-05 
a g a i n st a n  a ctor 's  fa m i l y  or  h ou se h o l d  m e m be r, as defined in s u bsect io n  4 of sect io n  1 4-07. 1 -0 1 ,  to 
com p l ete a d o m est ic v io lence offender  t reatment  p ro g ra m u n l ess  the c o u rt m a kes  written fin d i n g s  for 
t he  record exp l a i n i n g  why such a n  order  wou l d  be i n a p p ropr ia te .  Al th o u g h  we k n ow m a ny d o m est ic 
v io lence  offenders a re a rrested for cr imes u n d e r  t he  sect io n s  l i sted a b ove the  n u m ber  of offenders 
o rd e red  to atte n d  g rou p  va r ies wide ly  a c ross  j u d i c i a l  d i str icts m a n a ge m e n t  p ro g ra m s  t ha t  m a y  be 
i n a ppropr ia te for the  c r imes commi tted .  

R ES U LT 

SB  2004 .  DOM ESTIC V IOLE N C E  O F F E N D E R  TR EATM E NT PROG RAM . 

Provide a n  a pp ropr ia tion  of $ 3 00,000 to t he  depa rtme n t  of h e a l th to p rovide  g ra n ts 
to o rg a n izat ions  that prov ide dom e st ic  v io l ence offen d e r  trea tmen t  as a p a rt of a 
g ra d u ated ra nge  of s a n cti o n s  u sed by j u dges  ·10 h o l d  off e n d e rs a ccoun ta b l e  for t h e i r  
c ri m i n a l  action s  a n d  f o r  ch a n g i n g  t he i r  behav io r. Th e treatm en t  p ro g ra m s  sh a l l  e it h e r  
be i n  comp l ia nce o r  i n  t he  p rocess of worki n g  towa rds com p l i a n ce with the  N D  Ad u l t  
Ba tterer's Treatmen t  Sta n d a rds .  

https ://www. leg is . nd . gov/ a ssembly/ 65-20 17  / documen ts/1 7-0512-05000 .pdf 

Sources: Annua l  Cr ime and  Hom i c i de  Repor ts ,  Office o i  Att orney Gener al : CAWS North Dakota 
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19.0939.02001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Dwyer 

March 11, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

Page 2, line 26, replace ".6." with "6." 

Page 2, line 27, replace "B misdemeanor" with "C felony" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "B misdemeanor" with "C felony" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"g_,_ A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19. 0939.02001 
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19.0939.02002 
Title . 

Pl 
r/8 J :J f.:3 

�-ltf-1</ 
f. J Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 

Representative Roers Jones 
April 17, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the House 
Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bil l  No. 1393 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace "and" with an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 27, replace ".6." with "8" 

Page 2, line 27, after "second" insert "offense. and a class C felony for a third" 

Page 3, line 3, replace ".6." with "8" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0939.02002 
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19.0939.02003 
Title. 

ffz_ 
/-l,<8;"7�.3 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for � 'fr IP 

Representative Roers Jones -/ , -/7 
April 18, 2019 f'-- J 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the House 
Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1393 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace "and" with an underscored comma 

Page 2, line 27, replace ".6." with "ES ' 

Page 2, line 27, after "second" insert "offense, and a class C felony for a third" 

Page 3, line 3, replace ".6." with "8" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. 

4. A person charged with an offense under this section must be prosecuted in 
district court. " 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0939.02003 
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19.0939.02004 
Title. 

#'J 
//�/.3 1/'3 

�,2.:1-/'1 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Vetter 

April 19, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1393 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1189 and 1190 of the House 
Journal and page 909 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bil l No. 1393 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 27, replace ".6." with "8" 

Page 3, line 3, replace ".6." with "8" 

Page 3, line 3, replace "or" with "of subsection 2 and a class C felony for an offense under 
subdivision" 

Page 3, after line 3, insert: 

"c. A class B felony for an offense under subdivision b or c of 
subsection 2 if the victim is under twelve years of age. 

4. A person charged with an offense under this section must be prosecuted in 
district court."  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0939.02004 
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